
 

 

 
Portfolio Holder Decisions 
 
Date: Friday, 15 November 2019 

 
Items on the agenda: -  
 

1.   Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement – Section 54 
of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 - Leader of the Council 
 

3 - 8 

(1) Decision Notice -  Slavery and Human Trafficking 
Statement – Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 
- Leader of the Council 

 

9 - 10 

2.   The Warwickshire County Council (District Of Stratford 
On Avon) (Civil Enforcement Area) (Waiting 
Restrictions, On Street Parking Places and Residents’ 
Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation No. 5) Order 2019 - 
Transport and Planning 
 

11 - 66 

(1) Decision Notice - The Warwickshire County Council 
(District of Stratford on Avon)(Civil Enforcement 
Area)(Waiting Restrictions, On Street Parking Places 
and Residents' Parking)(Consolidation)(Variation No 5) 
Order 2019 - Transport and Planning 

 

67 - 68 

3.   Various Developer-funded Scheme Approvals - 
Additions to the Capital Programme - Deputy Leader 
(Finance and Property) 
 

69 - 80 

(1) Decision Notice - Various Developer-funded Scheme 
Approvals - Additions to the Capital Programme - 
Deputy Leader (Finance and Property) 

 

81 - 82 

Warwickshire County Council 



This page is intentionally left blank



Slavery PH L 19.11.15                                  1 of 2 
 

Proposed Decision to be taken by the Leader of the 
Council on or after 15 November 2019 

 
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement – Section 54 of 

the Modern Slavery Act 2015 
 

 

Recommendation 

That the Leader of the Council approves the County Council’s Slavery and Human 
Trafficking Statement for the financial years 2019/20. 
 
1.0   Background 
 
1.1  Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 requires certain organisations to 

develop a slavery and human trafficking statement each year. 
 

1.2  The statement should set out what steps the organisation has taken to ensure 
modern slavery is not taking place in their business or supply chain. 
 

2.0   Compliance with Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 
 

2.1  Warwickshire County Council has an annual turnover of over £36m, therefore 
we are required to produce a statement to comply with the Act. 
 

2.2  The Council’s Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement is attached at the 
appendix. The statement is a public facing statement and once approved, it 
will be published on the Council’s website. 

 
3.0 Financial Implications 
 
3.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from the report. The actions 

and activity outlined within the Modern Slavery Statement can be delivered 
from within the County Council’s existing resources. 

 
 
Background papers 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Page 1 of 6 Agenda Item 1



Slavery PH L 19.11.15                                  2 of 2 
 

 Name Contact Information 
Report Author Felicity Davies felicitydavies@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01926 738505 
Head of Service Sarah Duxbury  

 
sarahduxbury@warwickshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01926 412090 

Chief Executive Monica Fogarty monicafogarty@warwickshire.gov.uk 
01926 412187 

Portfolio Holder Councillor Izzi 
Seccombe 

cllrseccombe@warwickshire.gov.uk 

 
This report was circulated to Councillor Adrian Warwick, Chair of the Resources and 
Fire & Rescue Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to publication. 

Page 4

Page 2 of 6



APPENDIX 

Modern Slavery Act 2015 - Warwickshire County Council’s Modern Slavery and 
Human Trafficking Statement 2019/20 

Introduction 

Warwickshire County Council is committed to preventing slavery and human trafficking 
in our corporate activities and in our supply chain management. This statement sets 
out Warwickshire County Council’s actions to understand all potential modern slavery 
risks related to our services and business and to put in place steps that are aimed at 
ensuring that there is no slavery or human trafficking in our own services and business 
and our supply chains. This statement relates to actions and activities during the 
financial year 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. 

Organisational Structure 

Warwickshire County Council is a local authority which provides a range of statutory 
and discretionary services delivered both directly by the Council and through external 
organisations. Our structure can be found on our website by clicking here. 

This statement is published in response to the Modern Slavery Act 2015. 

Supply Chains 

The Council procures goods and services from various suppliers and this is governed 
by our Procurement Strategy 

Countries of Operation and Supply 

Warwickshire County Council only operates within the United Kingdom. Whilst the risk 
of slavery and human trafficking is considered low due to the nature of the Council’s 
business, the Council remains vigilant to any potential risks, and through our 
procurement policy, strategy and guidance sets high expectations from its supply 
chains. 

High Risk Activities 

The Council considers that, due to the nature of its business and the policies / 
processes that are in operation, there are no areas of its business that are considered 
to be at high risk of slavery or human trafficking. 

Responsibility 

Responsibility for the Council’s anti-slavery initiatives is as follows: 

Policies: These are developed by officers in the relevant Service area and are agreed 
in line with the Council’s scheme of delegation. Policies are reviewed to ensure that 
they remain relevant. 

Page 5

Page 3 of 6

https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/organisational-structure
https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/organisational-structure
https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/procurement
https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/procurement


Risk assessments: These are undertaken by the relevant service area where there 
is deemed to be a risk of modern slavery or human trafficking, with support from 
colleagues in Human Resources and Organisational Development (HR&OD) and 
Procurement. 

Investigations/due diligence: Any concerns regarding modern slavery or human 
trafficking should be raised with the Council’s Head of Service for Law and 
Governance in the first instance. 

Relevant Policies 

Warwickshire County Council reviews its policies and procedures on an on-going basis 
to ensure they remain compliant and fit for purpose. The following policies and 
procedures are considered to be key in meeting the requirements of the Modern 
Slavery Act: 

Safeguarding polices: In order to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and 
adults living in Warwickshire the Council’s safeguarding strategy is underpinned by a 
range of policies and guidance. You can find these by clicking here.  

Whistleblowing policy: The Council encourages all its employees, consultants 
contractors, volunteers and workers to report any concerns related to its direct 
activities, or the supply chains of the Council. This includes any circumstances that 
may give rise to an enhanced risk of slavery or human trafficking. The Council’s 
whistleblowing procedure is designed to make it easy for workers to make disclosures, 
without fear of retaliation.  

Employer and Employee Responsibilities Code: The Council's Code makes clear 
to our employees the actions and behaviour expected of them when representing the 
organisation. The organisation strives to maintain the highest standards of employee 
conduct and ethical behaviour in all its operations and when managing our supply 
chain. 

Recruitment: The Council’s recruitment processes are transparent and reviewed 
regularly. They include robust procedures for vetting new employees, which ensures 
they are able to confirm their identities and qualifications, and they are paid directly 
into an appropriate personal bank account. To comply with the Asylum, Immigration 
and Nationality Act 2006, all prospective employees are asked to supply evidence of 
their eligibility to work in the UK. References are also requested and followed up. 

Agency Workers: The Council uses employment agencies to source additional 
workforce capacity. Where agency workers are required these are primarily engaged 
through the Council’s managed service provider. 

Expectations of suppliers: The Council is committed to ensuring that its suppliers 
adhere to the highest standards of ethics. Suppliers are required to demonstrate that 
they provide safe working conditions where necessary, treat workers with respect and 

Page 6

Page 4 of 6

https://www.safeguardingwarwickshire.co.uk/safeguarding-children/i-work-with-children-and-young-people/interagency-safeguarding-procedures
https://www.safeguardingwarwickshire.co.uk/safeguarding-children/i-work-with-children-and-young-people/interagency-safeguarding-procedures
https://i.warwickshire.gov.uk/content/whistleblowing-public-interest-reporting/whistleblowing-public-interest-reporting
https://i.warwickshire.gov.uk/content/whistleblowing-public-interest-reporting/whistleblowing-public-interest-reporting
https://i.warwickshire.gov.uk/content/conduct/conduct
https://i.warwickshire.gov.uk/content/conduct/conduct


dignity and act ethically and within the law in workforce matters. The Council has a 
dedicated procurement website and our supplier guidance contains a ‘Supplier 
Checklist’.  

Due Diligence 

The Council requires its contractors and suppliers to demonstrate their commitment to 
supporting human rights within their supply chain relating to, for example, child labour, 
forced labour, health and safety and working hours. The Council undertakes due 
diligence when considering taking on new suppliers and regularly reviews its existing 
suppliers. This is the responsibility of the particular Council contracting managers with 
the support of the Council’s Procurement Team. The Council’s due diligence 
measures in place include: 

• the implementation of measures in the evaluation of suppliers to enable the 
exclusion of suppliers with convictions under the relevant sections of the 
Modern Slavery Act. 

• clarity that if a supplier misrepresents any information, that the supplier may be 
excluded from the procurement process and from bidding for other contracts in 
the future. If information comes to light after a contract has been entered into, 
that supplier may be sued for damages and the contract rescinded. 

• a review of contract terms and conditions and appropriate clauses for inclusion 
to ensure compliance with the Modern Slavery Act. Such terms and conditions 
are also applicable to sub-contractors in the supply chain. 

• embedding a county wide approach to contract management to consider any 
potential risk of slavery as it relates to each contract, and through active 
contract management to more effectively ensure that slavery and human 
trafficking is not taking place in the supply chain. 

• the use of new functionality within the e-tendering system to further strengthen 
the approach to ensuring modern slavery and human trafficking does not exist 
within the supply chain.  

Training 

The Council has developed and rolled out an e-learning package to raise awareness 
of modern slavery and trafficking amongst all employees and workers. This e-learning 
package is entitled “See Past The Obvious - Vulnerability and Serious Crime”, and has 
been developed in partnership with the Police. It includes a light-touch, awareness 
raising section on Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking. 

Face to face training referencing the Modern Slavery Act was also delivered to social 
care employees supporting adults in Warwickshire. Awareness has also been raised 
with social care employees of the legal duty that the Council has under the Modern 
Slavery Act to notify the Home Office of any individual encountered in England and 
Wales who the Council believes is a suspected victim of slavery or human trafficking. 

Page 7

Page 5 of 6

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/procurement


Partnerships  

The Council works in partnership with a wide range of partners and agencies to 
prevent abuse and neglect, to detect and report occurrences and to support victims. 
This includes district and borough councils, Warwickshire Police, Warwickshire Police 
and Crime Commissioner and the Local Safeguarding Boards. The Warwickshire 
Safeguarding website and the Council’s own website have guidance, procedures and 
a toolkit relating to the trafficking and exploitation of children and on the duty to report. 
You can access the Warwickshire Safeguarding website by clicking here. 

Approval for this Statement 

This statement has been approved by the Leader of the Council, Izzi Secombe. It will 
continue to be reviewed and provided annually. 

Signature:      Date:  

Leader of the Council 

Page 8

Page 6 of 6

https://www.safeguardingwarwickshire.co.uk/
https://www.safeguardingwarwickshire.co.uk/


Page 9

Page 1 of 2 Agenda Item 1a



Page 10

Page 2 of 2



Stratford On Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15                          1 of 9 
 

Proposed Decision to be taken by the Portfolio for Transport and 
Planning on or after 15 November 2019 

The Warwickshire County Council (District Of Stratford On Avon) 
(Civil Enforcement Area) (Waiting Restrictions, On Street Parking 
Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation No. 5) 

Order 2019 

 

Recommendation 

That the Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning approves that the 
Warwickshire County Council (District of Stratford On Avon) (Civil Enforcement 
Area) (Waiting Restrictions, On Street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) 
(Consolidation) (Variation No. 5) Order 2019 be made as advertised, with the 
exception of the proposals relating to High Street, Alcester to be withdrawn 
pending re-advertising as part of a future variation to Stratford District waiting 
restrictions. 

 
1. Introduction 

1.1. Throughout the year a number of requests for changes to parking restrictions 
have been received. This culminated in a list of schemes comprised of the 
requests that met with Warwickshire County Council’s parking policies within 
Stratford on Avon District. Details relating to the proposed variations were 
published in the Stratford Observer Newspaper on 22nd August 2019 and the 
consultation was carried out in accordance with statutory procedure. 

1.2. During the consultation process objections were received to various proposals 
within the variation. This report has been written to allow the Portfolio Holder to 
make an informed decision about whether to uphold the objections or to approve 
the variation. 

1.3. The proposals that received no objections are detailed below and it is 
recommended that these are implemented as advertised. 

Brownlow Drive, Stratford-upon-Avon – No Waiting at any Time 
A total of 5 letters of support were received 

Sanctus Road, Stratford-upon-Avon – Limited Waiting with permit exemptions 
A total of one letter of support was received. 

St Johns Close – No Waiting at any Time 
No correspondence was received. 

 
Welcombe Road – No Waiting Mon-Fri 8.00am-9.30am 2.30pm-4.00pm Except 
buses 

Page 11

Page 1 of 56 Agenda Item 2



Stratford On Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15                          2 of 9 
 

No correspondence was received. 
 

Avenue Road – No Waiting at any Time 
No correspondence was received. 
 

Shakespeare Street – Pay and Display-except permit holders only 
No correspondence was received. 

 
1.4. The statutory criteria for decisions on making Traffic Regulation Orders are 

included as Appendix A. 

1.5. Drawings showing published restrictions are found in Appendix B. 

1.6. Copies of objections received can be found in Appendix C.  

 
 

2. Market Way, Henley-in-Arden – No Waiting at any Time  

2.1. Market Way is a relatively new residential street adjacent to the Warwick Road 
in Henley in Arden. Warwickshire County Council was asked by residents to 
help prevent dangerous parking near to the junction with Market Way and 
Warwick Road. 

The restrictions that were proposed can be found in Appendix B as plan No. 
TR/10876-13 

2.2. The following tables detail the objections and comments received together 
with the officers’ comments and recommendation. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 1 
Total comments 1 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 

responses 
containing the 

comment  
A Will eliminate the 3 parking spaces that are currently 

available. 1 

B Will push even more vehicles to park further up the road 1 
C Support the proposals 1 
D Request for residents parking only signs 1 

 

 

 

Page 12

Page 2 of 56



Stratford On Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15                          3 of 9 
 

Ref Officer Comments 
A/B These restrictions were proposed to prevent dangerous parking near to a 

junction. This type of parking is already prohibited as is can be considered 
an obstruction, the proposals seek to reinforce this and to highlight where 
is safe to park. 

C No comment necessary 
D ‘Residents only’ parking is not general County Council Policy.  It is over-

restrictive because it can remove valuable on-street parking spaces which 
would otherwise be available to drivers needing short-term parking.  In 
many residential areas pressure on parking spaces is greatest during the 
evenings, overnight and at weekends.  ‘Residents only’ restrictions would 
not help in these circumstances because the vehicles parked are likely to 
belong to residents. 

 

Recommendations 
It is recommended to implement the proposals as advertised 

 

Members Comments 
 
 

3. Prince Harry Road, Henley-in-Arden, No Waiting at any Time 

3.1. Prince Harry Road is a residential road just outside of the main town centre. A 
request was received to extend the existing double yellow lines further into the 
road to restrict parking close to the junction or round the bend. 

The restrictions that were proposed can be found in Appendix B as plan No. 
TR/10876-14 

3.2. The following tables detail the objections and comments received together with 
the officers’ comments and recommendation. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 2 
Total comments 3 
 
 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 

responses 
containing the 

comment  

A 
Any concerns regarding safe passage of traffic are largely 
valid mostly within working hours and a ‘No Waiting at any 
Time’ restriction is unnecessarily severe. 

2 

B Parking restrictions in Henley are so poorly enforced, 
changes on this road wouldn’t fare any better 2 

Page 13

Page 3 of 56



Stratford On Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15                          4 of 9 
 

C Propose the restriction should be No Waiting 0900-1700 
Mon-Fri 1 

D Accept the proposals 1 
 

Ref Officer Comments 

A/C 
The proposals were for No Waiting at any Time as the requirement for safe 
passage of traffic is not restricted to certain times of the day, however it is 
acknowledged that at certain times the traffic volume is higher and the 
perception of restrictions being unnecessary is a justified one. 

B 
All parking restrictions are enforced in Warwickshire, the levels of 
enforcement are targeted to be proportionate to the location and resources 
available, measured against the compliance observed of the parking 
restrictions. 

D No comment necessary 
 

Recommendations 
It is recommended to implement the proposals as advertised 

 

Members Comments 
 
 

4. Main Street, Tiddington, No Waiting at any Time 

4.1. On Main Street, Tiddington is a retirement property called Margaret Court. It 
was requested by the local member on behalf of Margaret Court to prevent 
dangerous parking near to the entrance of the property. 

The restrictions that were proposed can be found in Appendix B as plan No. 
TR/10876-10 

4.2. A petition was received containing 26 signatures in support of the proposals. 

4.3. The following tables detail the objections and comments received together with 
the officers’ comments and recommendation. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 2 
Total comments 1 
 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 

responses 
containing the 

comment  
A Strongly support the proposals 1 
B Strongly Object to the proposals 2 

Page 14

Page 4 of 56



Stratford On Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15                          5 of 9 
 

C Parking is already a problem, introducing these proposals 
will only make it worse 2 

 

Ref Officer Comments 
A/B No comment necessary 

C 
These restrictions were proposed to prevent dangerous parking near to a 
junction. This type of parking is already prohibited as is can be considered 
an obstruction, the proposals seek to reinforce this and to highlight where 
is safe to park. 

 

Recommendations 
It is recommended that the proposals are implemented as advertised. 

 

Members Comments 
 
 

5. New Street, Tiddington, No Waiting at any Time 

5.1. At the south end of New Street, a new residential estate is being constructed. 
A number of residents approached the County Council with concerns over the 
volume of traffic that would be using this road. What was proposed was 
proposed was to restrict parking along the road to allow traffic to use the road 
more freely. 

The restrictions that were proposed can be found in Appendix B as plan No. 
TR/10876-11 

5.2. The following tables detail the objections and comments received together with 
the officers’ comments and recommendation. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 2 
Total comments 4 
 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 

responses 
containing the 

comment  
A Welcome the changes 1 
B No Waiting should be all the way along one side 1 

C Continuing with parking one side then the other is 
dangerous when dealing with two-way traffic 1 

D Make New Street one way 2 

E Not enough space as it is, by introducing No Waiting zones 
will force residents to access scarce free parking  6 

Page 15

Page 5 of 56



Stratford On Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15                          6 of 9 
 

F Strongly oppose 3 
G Request a single yellow line 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 
A/F No comment necessary 

B/C 

To prevent parking on one side of the road only is likely to increase the 
speeds of traffic travelling along New Street increasing the risk of an 
accident occurring. By switching the parking from one side to the other 
creates a ‘chicane’ feature that serves to reduce vehicle speeds by forcing 
cars to manoeuvre round the cars 

D 
A traffic survey was carried out and it was decided that New Street would 
not be the favourable through route for residents from the new 
development. Therefore, this would not justify the inconvenience caused to 
residents. 

E 

These restrictions were proposed to highlight where could considered safe 
and where could be considered unsafe to park. It is acknowledged that 
parking could be shifted to the surrounding streets, however the 
responsibility lies with the driver to find a safe and reasonable place to 
park. 

G 
The proposals were for No Waiting at any Time as the requirement for safe 
passage of traffic is not restricted to certain times of the day, however it is 
acknowledged that at certain times the traffic volume is higher and the 
perception of restrictions being unnecessary is a justified one. 

 

Recommendations 
It is recommended that the proposals are implemented as advertised. 

 

Members Comments 
 
 

6. Sandfield Road, Stratford-upon-Avon – No Waiting at any Time 

6.1. Sandfield Road is a residential road which has a mixture of houses and 
apartments along its length. We have received a number of requests to prevent 
vehicles parking along Sandfield Road, preventing vehicles from accessing the 
parking areas for the apartments.  

The restrictions that were proposed can be found in Appendix B as plan No. 
TR/10876-055.2.  

6.2. The following tables detail the objections and comments received together with 
the officers’ comments and recommendation. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 1 
Total comments 2 

Page 16

Page 6 of 56



Stratford On Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15                          7 of 9 
 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 

responses 
containing the 

comment  
A Introduction of parking permits for Sandfield Road on safety 

grounds should go ahead 1 

B Support the changes 2 
C Object to the proposals 1 

D By putting double yellow lines outside of the houses 
disadvantages those houses by not allowing visitors 1 

E Agree to putting double yellow lines opposite the houses 1 
 

Ref Officer Comments 
A The proposals were for No Waiting at any Time restrictions. Permits were 

not proposed for Sandfield Road. 
B/C/E No comment necessary 

D 
The double yellow lines outside of the houses on Sandfield Road were 
proposed to prevent the cars that are currently parking opposite from 
parking directly outside of the houses potentially blocking the driveways. 

 

Recommendations 
It is recommended that the proposals are implemented as advertised. 

 

Members Comments 
 
 

7. Sheep Street, Shipston-on-Stour – No Waiting at any Time 

7.1. Sheep Street is a narrow street in Shipston on Stour that has a mix of residential 
and business addresses along its length. It was requested by a resident to 
remove a short section of parking opposite the entrance of Sheepfold Mews to 
aid vehicles exiting the courtyard area. 

The restrictions that were proposed can be found in Appendix B as plan No. 
TR/10876-01 

7.2. The following tables detail the objections and comments received together with 
the officers’ comments and recommendation. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 1 
Total comments 0 
 

Page 17

Page 7 of 56



Stratford On Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15                          8 of 9 
 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 

responses 
containing the 

comment  
A Loses one parking space on Sheep Street 1 
B Access to Sheep Fold Mews is perfectly possible 1 

 

Ref Officer Comments 
A It is acknowledged that these proposals would remove space for one car to 

park, however Sheep Street has capacity for in excess of 40 cars.  

B 
Whilst access to Sheep Fold Mews may be possible under certain 
circumstances, anecdotal evidence from a resident and computer 
simulated tracking of this manoeuvre has shown it to be difficult when cars 
are parked opposite the junction. 

 

Recommendations 
It is recommended that the proposals are implemented as advertised. 

 

Members Comments 
 
 

8. High Street, Alcester – Disabled Badge Holders Only 

8.1. It was suggested by the local member to introduce more disabled bays along 
High Street, Alcester. 

The restrictions that were proposed can be found in Appendix B as plan No. 
TR/10876-12 

8.2. The following tables detail the officers’ comments and recommendation for this 
proposal. 

Officer Comments 
During the consultation, Alcester Town Council raised concerns over the accessibility of 
the plans. Additionally, they raised concerns over the length of time that residents and 
businesses had to respond. Whilst the letters were sent out before the consultation 
began, they did not arrive until a week after the consultation started. We agreed with the 
Town council that the proposals will be reconsulted upon to ensure that all affected 
residents and businesses are properly informed. 
 

Recommendations 
It is recommended to remove these proposals from the variation with a view to reconsult 
in the next variation to parking controls in Stratford District. 

 
Members Comments 

   

Page 18

Page 8 of 56



Stratford On Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15                          9 of 9 
 

9. Financial Implications 

9.1. All work will be carried out within the existing 2019/20 budget allocations. 

10. Timescales associated with the decision and next steps 

11.1. All work will be carried out within the existing 2019/20 budget allocations. 

11. Background Papers 

12.1. Letters and email objections along with large scale plans that can be 
produced if required. 

 

 Name Contact details 

Report author Ben Davenport bendavenport@warwickshire.gov.uk 
Assistant Director Dave Ayton-Hill daveayton-hill@warwickshire.gov.uk 
Strategic director Mark Ryder markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk 
Portfolio holder Jeff Clarke cllrclarke@warwickshire.gov.uk 
 

This report was circulated to the following elected members prior to publication: 

Local members: Councillors Fradgley, Rolfe, Cargill, Horner, Barker and Skinner 

Other members: Councillors Clarke, Cockburn, Shilton, Holland, Kondakor, 
Roodhouse and Chilvers 

 

 

 

Page 19

Page 9 of 56



 A1 of 2  
 

Appendix A  
 

Statutory Criteria for Decisions on Making Traffic  
Regulation Orders and Parking Orders 

 
Various Roads, District of Stratford- 

Proposed Waiting Restrictions, On-Street Parking Places 
and Residents’ Parking Permits – Variation 05 

 
1. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 enables the Council to implement Traffic 

Regulation Orders (TROs) for one or more of the following purposes:- 
 

(i) avoiding danger to persons or traffic; 
(ii) preventing damage to the road or to buildings nearby; 
(iii) facilitating the passage of traffic; 
(iv) preventing use by unsuitable traffic; 
(v) preserving the character of a road especially suitable for walking and 

horse riding; 
(vi) preserving or improving amenities of the area through which the road 

runs; 
(vii) for any of the purposes specified in Section 87(1)(a) to (c) of the 

Environment Act 1995 in relation to air quality. 
 
2. TROs are designed to regulate, restrict or prohibit the use of a road or any part 

of the width of a road by vehicular traffic or pedestrians.  Permanent TROs 
remain in force until superseded or revoked.  

 
3. TROs must not have the effect of preventing pedestrian access at any time, or 

preventing vehicular access for more than 8 hours in 24, to premises on or 
adjacent to the road.  This restriction does not apply if the Council states in the 
order that it requires vehicular access to be limited for more than 8 hours in 24.  

 
4. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 also enables the Council to make orders 

authorising the use of part of a road as a parking place without charge, for the 
purpose of preventing or relieving congestion, and enables the Council to make 
orders designating parking places on highways with a charge.  In determining 
what parking places are to be designated, the Council shall consider both the 
interests of traffic, and those of the owners/occupiers of adjoining property and 
in particular:- 

 
(I) The need for maintaining the free movement of traffic; 
(ii) The need for maintaining reasonable access to premises; and 
(iii) The extent to which off-street parking is available in the neighbourhood.   

 
5. In deciding whether or not to make any order, the Council is required to have 

regard to the matters set out in section 122 of the 1984 Act.  Section 122(1) 
requires the Council to exercise the functions conferred on it by the 1984 Act as 
(so far as practicable, having regard to the matters specified in Section 122(2)) 
to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other 

Page 20

Page 10 of 56



 A2 of 2  
 

traffic (including pedestrians), and the provision of suitable and adequate 
parking facilities on and off the highway.   

 
6. The matters to which the Council must have regard are:- 
 

(i) The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to 
premises; 

(ii) The effect on the amenities of any locality affected, and the importance of 
regulating and restricting the use of roads by heavy commercial vehicles 
so as to preserve or improve the amenities of the areas through which the 
roads run; 

(iii) The national air quality strategy prepared under Section 80 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1995; 

(iv) The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and 
of securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to 
use such vehicles; 

(v) Any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant 
 

7. Therefore, whilst the overall objective of the Council must be to secure the 
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular traffic, this will 
sometimes need to give way to the objectives in Section 122(2), and a balance 
has to be achieved between the overall objective and the matters set out in 
Section 122(2). 

 

Page 21

Page 11 of 56



C

o

u

n

c

i
l

1

5

6

8

.

9

m

3

6

4

6

S

h

e

p

h

e

r

d

s

Sheep

B

a

r

n

4

6

a

1

3

1

7

1

5

a

5

0

Mews

3

6

c

3

8

Fold

3

6

a

S

u

f

f

o

l

k

 

H

o

u

s

e

Manor

Lodge

5

 

m

S

H

E

E

P

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-01 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed Extension of

'No Waiting at any Time'

Proposed 5 metre

Removal of

 Limited Bays

Existing Limited

Waiting Bays

P
age 22

P
age 12 of 56



W

E

L

C

O

M

B

E

 
R

O

A

D

S

T

 

G

R

E

G

O

R

Y

'

S

 

R

O

A

D

W

A

R

W

I

C

K

 

R

O

A

D

1

3

9

St Gregory's Priory

1

5

B

e

y

n

a

c

C

a

t

h

o

l

i

c

 

C

h

u

r

c

h

4

S

t

 

G

r

e

g

o

r

y

'

s

2

1 to 5

Cedar Grange

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-02 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed Extension of

'No Waiting at any Time'

Existing 'No Waiting

at any Time

Existing Limited

Waiting Bays

Proposed 20 metre

Removal of

 Limited Bays

P
age 23

P
age 13 of 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
E



E

V

E

S

H

A

M

 

R

O

A

D

SANCTUS R
OAD

1

9

7

34

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-03 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Existing 'No Waiting

at any Time

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Proposed New

residents Parking & Limited

Waiting Bays

P
age 24

P
age 14 of 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
E



B

R

O

W

N

L

O

W

 
D

R

I
V

E

E

V

E

S

H

A

M

 
R

O

A

D

1

9

1

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-04 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

P
age 25

P
age 15 of 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
E



1

2

3

2

9

2

6

4

2

9

1

2

a

9

6

9

1

4

1

5

6

1

1

R

O

A

D

D

R

I

V

E

7

8

1

H

E

R

T

F

O

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

4

1

6

C

H

E

R

R

Y

 

O

R

C

H

A

R

D

1

5

8

S

A

N

C

T

U

S

1

2

1

5

3

1

0

2

7

1

3

5

1

3

1

6

1

6

L

e

a

 

C

o

u

r

t

1

1

2

8

3

0

1

4

1

1

2

1

0

C

y

c

l

e

 

P

a

t

h

S

A

N

D

F

I

E

L

D

6

1

S

a

n

d

f

i

e

l

d

 

C

o

u

r

t

C

H

E

R

R

Y

 

O

R

C

H

A

R

D

1

4

5

7

9

1

1

S

A

N

D

F

I

E

L

D

 

R

O

A

D

S

A

N

D

F

I

E

L

D

 

R

O

A

D

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-05 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Existing 'No Waiting

at any Time

Existing

 'No Waiting

at any Time

P
age 26

P
age 16 of 56



6

S

T

 

J

O

H

N

S

 

C

L

O

S

E

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-06 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Existing 'No Waiting

at any Time

P
age 27

P
age 17 of 56



S
A

N
C

T
U

S
 R

O
A

D

1
0

Court

1

S
a
n
c
tu

s
 R

o
a
d
 B

r
id

g
e

6

St John's

5

4

1

4

3

1

6

3

2

2

ST JOHNS CLOSE

1

7

3

1

1
1

1

5

7

3

5

El Sub Sta

1

1

3

1
2

6

AR

Centre

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-07 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

P
age 28

P
age 18 of 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
E



3

1

4

1 to 3

2

2

8

7

G

r

a

s

m

e

r

e

 

C

o

u

r

t

1

Morton Court

1

t

o

8

1

M

A

I

D

E

N

H

E

A

D

1

7

S

T

 

G

R

E

G

O

R

Y

'

S

 

R

O

A

D

2

R

O

A

D

8

E

l
 
S

u

b

 
S

t
a

2

E

l

s

i

n

o

r

e

1

0

5

4

Pine Cottage

1

2

3

0

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-08 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Existing

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Proposed
'No Stopping Except Buses
Mon - Fri 8:00am - 9.30am

& 2:30pm - 4pm'

P
age 29

P
age 19 of 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
E



3

0

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

1

1

2

8

S

H

A

K

E

S

P

E

A

R

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

2

6

2

9

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-09 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Existing 'Pay

& Display'

bays to remain

Existing Disabled

Bay to be returned

to Pay & Display

P
age 30

P
age 20 of 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
E



M

A

R

G

A

R

E

T

 

C

O

U

R

T

3

9

T

h

e

 

L

i

m

e

s

1

t

o

1

2

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-10 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Existing

Bus Stop

P
age 31

P
age 21 of 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
E



Sub Sta

3
0

3
5

3
3

3
7

3
9

5
1

El

37

4
4

N
E

W
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

O
A

K
 R

O
A

D

N
E

W
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

8 m
etres

90 m
etres

14 m
etres

3
0
a

3

2
a

23

1
3

1

2
b

M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

3
0
b

2

3
0

3
2

H
olly C

ottage

W

a

l

n

u

t

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

N
E

W
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

140 m
etres

14 m
etres

Drawn by: Checked by:

Reference No.:

APPENDIX B

TR10876-11 BD JR

Committee name - Portfolio Holder

for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of

the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead

to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed 5 metre

extension of

'No Waiting

at any Time'

on Main Street

Proposed new

10 metres of

'No Waiting

at any Time'

on Oak Road

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Proposed New

'No Waiting

 at any Time

Page 32

Page 22 of 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
W



8

b

2

5

2
d

8

d

2

1

8

2

4

6

1

9

a

2

2

2

2

a

1

3

1

4

1

1

a

1

1

1

6

2

1

1

7

1

9

9

1

4

a

1

5

2

3

2

9

H

I

G

H

S

T

R

E

E

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-12 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed New Blue Badge

Holders Parking Bay

Proposed New Blue Badge

Holders Parking Bay

Existing Parking  Bays

to remain the same.

P
age 33

P
age 23 of 56



2
2
0

M

A
R

K
E

T
 
W

A
Y

2
1
5

2
1
1

1

2
0
9

2
0
1

1
6

2
1
9

A
 
4
1
8
9

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-13 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Existing 'No Waiting

at any Time

Proposed Extension of

'No Waiting at any Time'

P
age 34

P
age 24 of 56



W

e

i

r

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

2

E

l

14

1
1

1

 
t
o

 
7

G

a

r

a

g

e

5

7

9

18

A

 
4

1

8

9

P

R

I
N

C

E

 
H

A

R

R

Y

R

O

A

D

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-14 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Existing 'No Waiting

at any Time

Proposed Extension of

'No Waiting at any Time'

P
age 35

P
age 25 of 56



S

T

R

A

T

F

O

R

D

 

R

O

A

D

M
A

Y
S

W
O

O
D

 R
O

A
D

A
P

P
E

N
D

I
X

 
B

Drawn by: Checked by:

Plan number :

Committee name - Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning

Stratford CPE Variation 5

TR/10876-15 BD JR

Based on Ordnance Survey

mapping with the permission of the

Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and

database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction

infringes copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H
:
\
T
r
a
f
f
i
c
\
A
_
P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
\
A
A
_
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
 
o
n
 
A
v
o
n
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
\
C
P
E
 
V
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
\
V
5
 
2
0
1
9
 
S
t
r
a
t
f
o
r
d
\
0
2
 
-
 
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C
A
D

\
T
R
_
1
0
8
7
6
.
d
w

g

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Proposed new

'No Waiting at any Time'

P
age 36

P
age 26 of 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
Cornerways



Page 37

Page 27 of 56



Page 38

Page 28 of 56



Page 39

Page 29 of 56



Page 40

Page 30 of 56



Page 41

Page 31 of 56



Page 42

Page 32 of 56



Page 43

Page 33 of 56



Page 44

Page 34 of 56



Page 45

Page 35 of 56



Page 46

Page 36 of 56



Page 47

Page 37 of 56



Page 48

Page 38 of 56



Page 49

Page 39 of 56



Page 50

Page 40 of 56



Page 51

Page 41 of 56



Page 52

Page 42 of 56



Page 53

Page 43 of 56



Page 54

Page 44 of 56



Page 55

Page 45 of 56



Page 56

Page 46 of 56



Page 57

Page 47 of 56



Page 58

Page 48 of 56



Page 59

Page 49 of 56



Page 60

Page 50 of 56



Page 61

Page 51 of 56



Page 62

Page 52 of 56



Page 63

Page 53 of 56



Page 64

Page 54 of 56



Page 65

Page 55 of 56



Page 66

Page 56 of 56



Page 67

Page 1 of 2 Agenda Item 2a



Page 68

Page 2 of 2



Cap Prog PH DL 19.11.15                                1 of 6 
 

 
Proposed Decision to be taken by the Deputy Leader 
(Finance and Property) on or after 15 November 2019 

 
Various Developer-funded Scheme Approvals 

 
Recommendations 
 
That the Deputy Leader (Finance and Property) gives approval to the addition of the 
following six schemes to the Capital Programme for 2019/2020 and authorises the 
Strategic Director for Communities to procure the construction contracts for the 
schemes where appropriate and to enter into such contracts on terms and conditions 
acceptable to the Strategic Director for Resources subject to the applicable Section 
278 Agreements with the Developers being signed which will provide for 100% of the 
funding: 
 

• A45 Stonebridge Highway / D2201 Rowley Road, Baginton. Developers – 
Coventry City Council and Coventry and Warwickshire Development 
Partnership LLP. Approximate value (fees only) £600k 

• B4029 Severn Road, Bulkington. Developer – Taylor Wimpey. Approximate 
value (fees and works) £500k 

• B4632 Campden Road, Quinton. Developer – Persimmon Homes. 
Approximate value (fees and works) £1.5m 

• C33 Bubbenhall Road, Baginton (Gateway South). Developer – Coventry and 
Warwickshire Development Partnership LLP. Approximate value (fees only) 
£600k 

• D6216 Upper Henley Street, Stratford-upon-Avon. Developer – Stratford-on-
Avon District Council. Approximate value (fees only) £50k 

• M6 Junction 1 / A426 Leicester Road, Rugby. Developer – MOTO Hospitality 
Ltd. Approximate value (fees only) £250k 

 
1.0 Key Issues 
 
1.1 On 21 May 2019 Council reconfirmed the delegated power to the Leader, or 

body nominated by them, to approve the addition to the capital programme of 
projects costing less than £2.0 million, which are fully funded from external 
grants, developer contributions or from revenue, and to approve proposals to 
procure and/or enter into major contracts with a total value up to £3.0 million. 
The Deputy Leader (Finance and Property) is that nominated body. 

 
1.2 These schemes will be fully funded by developer contributions ring-fenced for 

the fees and works specified. In the case of Section 278 schemes there are 
no alternative uses for the contributions and the addition of these schemes 
will not affect the overall level of available capital resources. 

 
1.3 Within the following section of this report there are references to plans 

showing the proposed highway improvements in accordance with the 
appropriate planning conditions. Statutory and public consultation on these 
proposals was undertaken through the planning process. These schemes are 

Page 69

Page 1 of 12 Agenda Item 3



Cap Prog PH DL 19.11.15                                2 of 6 
 

subject to on-going technical approval processes and the final detail of the 
schemes may differ slightly to that shown here. 

 
1.4 Where applicable the construction contracts for these works will be 

undertaken by contractors from the appropriate Lot of the Council’s 
Framework Contract for the Provision of Engineering and Construction Works. 
The procurement process will either involve a mini-competition between 
Framework contractors or a direct award to a Framework contractor 
nominated by the appropriate developer. The direct award option is only 
available when the works are wholly funded by a developer who has entered 
into a Section 278 agreement with the Council. In very specific circumstances 
the Council will allow a developer to procure the works through their own 
contract and in these cases the capital programme allocation will be for fees 
only. 

 
1.5 Where the proposed highway improvements include certain forms of traffic 

calming, a traffic signal controlled pedestrian or cycle crossing or there is a 
need for a traffic regulation order in respect of a speed limit or waiting 
restrictions, then it will be necessary to carry out a separate statutory notice 
and consultation procedure which will be reported to the relevant Portfolio 
Holder if objections are received. 

 
1.6 Where a highway scheme is considered and approved as part of the planning 

process, the courts have made it clear that the highway / traffic authority is 
expected to co-operate in its implementation unless some exceptional or 
changed circumstances call for a different approach.  

 
2.0 A45 Stonebridge Highway / D2201 Rowley Road, Baginton 
 
2.1 A planning application was submitted to Warwick District Council by Coventry 

City Council in respect of a development on land between A45 Stonebridge 
Highway and D2201 Rowley Road, Baginton, known as “Whitley South”. 
Planning permission was granted on 10 July 2017 (ref: W/16/0239). The 
planning application includes new slip roads to the A45 and connecting roads 
to a new roundabout on Rowley Road.  

 
2.2 A plan showing the approved design of the highway improvement is included 

in Appendix A. The Council entered into a Section 278 agreement with the 
Developer, Coventry City Council, and the leaseholder, Coventry and 
Warwickshire Development Partnership LLP, on 12 September 2019 which 
permitted the Developer to enter into their own contract and works are now 
underway. Under the terms of the Section 278 agreement all the costs and 
fees are fully funded by the Developer. 

 
2.3 As the new highway assets which are being created will come on to the 

Council’s balance sheet once completed, the costs incurred by the Council 
still need to be treated as capital expenditure. Therefore the recommendation 
is to add this scheme to the Capital Programme at an estimated cost of 
£600,000 in respect of the fees which have been and will be incurred for 
technical approval of the designs and the supervision of the construction 
works, which are expected to be completed in the 2020/21 financial year.  

 

Page 70

Page 2 of 12



Cap Prog PH DL 19.11.15                                3 of 6 
 

3.0 B4029 Bedworth Road, Bulkington 
 
3.1 A planning application was submitted to Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough 

Council by Taylor Wimpey for the erection of up to 190 dwellings on land 
between Bedworth Road and Severn Road, Bulkington. Planning permission 
is pending (ref: 036491) and the proposals submitted by the Developer 
include the construction of an access from Bedworth Road. 

 
3.2 Plans showing the layout of the proposed highway improvement are included 

in Appendix B, however these may be subject to change as the planning 
process and subsequent detailed designs evolve. The Council will enter into a 
Section 278 agreement with the Developer and under the agreement all the 
Council’s costs and fees associated with the technical review, procurement 
and supervision of the works will be fully funded by the Developer. 

 
3.3 Subject to the recommendation to add this scheme to the Capital Programme 

being agreed at an estimated cost of £500,000 the technical review of the 
scheme design is expected to commence within the 2019/2020 financial year 
and the works will be procured in a future financial year once the technical 
review is complete to the County Council’s satisfaction.  

 
4.0 B4632 Campden Road, Quinton 
 
4.1 A planning application was submitted to Stratford-on-Avon District Council by 

Codex Land Promotions Ltd for a four-arm roundabout to serve a mixed use 
development on land within Wychavon District Council’s administrative 
boundary. Planning permission was granted on 01 August 2013 
(ref: 13/00126/OUT). This scheme is now being promoted by Persimmon 
Homes. 

 
4.2 Plans showing the layout of the proposed highway improvement are included 

in Appendix C, however these may be subject to change as the detailed 
designs evolve. The Council will enter into a Section 278 agreement with the 
Developer and under the agreement all the Council’s costs and fees 
associated with the technical review, procurement and supervision of the 
works will be fully funded by the Developer. 

 
4.3 Subject to the recommendation to add this scheme to the Capital Programme 

being agreed at an estimated cost of £1,500,000 the technical review of the 
scheme design is expected to commence within the 2019/2020 financial year 
and the works will be procured in a future financial year once the technical 
review is complete to the Council’s satisfaction.  

 
4.4 Subject to the Deputy Leader’s approval to add this scheme to the capital 

programme, further approval is sought to procure the major contract for the 
scheme and to enter into such contract subject to the applicable Section 278 
Agreement with the Developer being signed which will provide for 100% of the 
funding. 

 
 
 

Page 71

Page 3 of 12



Cap Prog PH DL 19.11.15                                4 of 6 
 

5.0 C33 Bubbenhall Road, Baginton 
 
5.1 A planning application was submitted to Warwick District Council by Coventry 

and Warwickshire Development Partnership LLP in respect of a development 
on land between D2201 Rowley Road and C33 Bubbenhall Road, Baginton, 
known as “Gateway South”. Planning permission was given on 07 October 
2019 (ref: W/18/0522). The planning application includes connecting roads to 
the new Whitley South roundabout on Rowley Road and C33 Bubbenhall 
Road.  

 
5.2 A plan showing the proposed design of the highway improvement is included 

in Appendix D, however these may be subject to change as the detailed 
designs evolve. The Council will enter into a Section 278 agreement with the 
Developer and under the agreement all the Council’s costs and fees 
associated with the technical review and supervision of the works will be fully 
funded by the Developer. 

 
5.3 As the new highway assets which are being created will come on to the 

Council’s balance sheet once completed, the costs incurred by the Council 
still need to be treated as capital expenditure. Therefore, the recommendation 
is to add this scheme to the Capital Programme at an estimated cost of 
£600,000 in respect of the fees which have been and will be incurred for 
technical approval of the designs and the supervision of the construction 
works, which are expected to be completed in the 2021/22 financial year.  

 
 
6.0 D6216 Upper Henley Street, Stratford-upon-Avon 
 
6.1 Stratford-on-Avon District Council wish to make public realm improvements to 

the adopted highway on Upper Henley Street in Stratford-upon-Avon.  
 
6.2 A plan showing the proposed design of the public realm improvements is 

included in Appendix E, however these may be subject to change as the 
detailed designs evolve. The Council will enter into a Section 278 agreement 
with Stratford-on-Avon District Council to permit them to enter into their own 
contract to undertake the works and under the agreement all the County 
Council’s costs and fees associated with the technical review and supervision 
of the works will be fully funded by Stratford-on-Avon District Council. 

 
6.3 As the new highway assets which are being created will come on to the 

Council’s balance sheet once completed, the costs incurred by the Council 
still need to be treated as capital expenditure. Therefore the recommendation 
is to add this scheme to the Capital Programme at an estimated cost of 
£50,000 in respect of the fees which have been and will be incurred for 
technical approval of the designs and the supervision of the construction 
works, which are expected to be completed in the 2020/21 financial year.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72

Page 4 of 12



Cap Prog PH DL 19.11.15                                5 of 6 
 

7.0 M6 Junction 1 / A426 Leicester Road, Rugby 
 
7.1 A planning application was submitted to Rugby Borough Council by Moto 

Hospitality Limited in respect of a new motorway service area off M6 
Junction 1 to the north of Rugby. Planning permission was given on 02 May 
2018 (ref: R17/0011). The highway improvements include an access into the 
motorway service area and changes to the slip road from the M6. 

 
7.2 A plan showing the proposed design of the highway improvement is included 

in Appendix F, however these may be subject to change as the detailed 
designs evolve. Given the complexity of these works and the interaction with 
the strategic highway network, the County Council will enter into a 
Section 278 agreement with the Developer to permit them to enter into their 
own contract to undertake the works and under the agreement all the costs 
and fees associated with the technical review and supervision of the works 
will be fully funded by the Developer. 

 
7.3 As the new highway assets which are being created will come on to the 

Council’s balance sheet once completed, the costs incurred by the Council 
still need to be treated as capital expenditure. Therefore, the recommendation 
is to add this scheme to the Capital Programme at an estimated cost of 
£250,000 in respect of the fees which have been and will be incurred for 
technical approval of the designs and the supervision of the construction 
works, which are expected to be completed in the 2021/22 financial year.  

 
8.0 Financial implications 
 
8.1 As the new highway assets which are being created through these schemes 

will come on to the Council’s balance sheet once completed, the costs 
incurred by the Council need to be treated as capital expenditure. 

 
8.2 Section 278 schemes are fully funded by developer contributions which are 

ring-fenced for the schemes described in the sections above. There are no 
alternative uses for the contributions and the addition of these schemes will 
not affect the overall level of available capital resources.  

 
8.3 The financial years within which the technical review and works are expected 

to start are included in the sections above. However, the commencement of 
the works is dependent on the completion of the technical review, 
procurement and contractor mobilisation processes and may slip. Any 
slippage or increase in costs due to changes in the scope of the works will be 
reported in the normal quarterly monitoring process. 

 
 
Background papers 

 
None 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73

Page 5 of 12



Cap Prog PH DL 19.11.15                                6 of 6 
 

 Name Contact Information 
Report Author Shirley Reynolds shirleyreynolds@warwickshire.gov.uk  

Tel: 01926 412110 
Assistant Director 
(Environment Services) 

Scott Tompkins scotttompkins@warwickshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01926 412422 

Strategic Director 
(Communities) 

Mark Ryder markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01926 412811 

Deputy Leader (Finance 
and Property) 

Cllr Peter Butlin cllrbutlin@warwickshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01788 816488 

 
 
The report was circulated to the following members prior to publication: 
 
Local Members:  
 
Cllr Brain – Bidford and Welford 
Cllr Morgan – Bulkington and Whitestone 
Cllr Redford – Cubbington and Leek Wootton 
Cllr Seccombe – Stour and the Vale 
Cllr Simpson-Vince – Brownsover and Coton Park 
Cllr Skinner – Stratford North 
Cllr Warwick – Fosse 
 
Other Members:  
 
Cllrs Singh Birdi, Chilvers, Butlin, Chattaway and Boad 

Page 74

Page 6 of 12



Appendix A

S278 scheme:
Stonebridge Highway /
Rowley Road, Baginton

Extracts from THDA drawings THDA-DR-0100-104 and -105 and WCC OS mapping licence 100019520 

P
age 75

P
age 7 of 12



Appendix B

S278 scheme:
B4029 Bedworth Road, 
Bulkington

Extracts from Taylor Wimpey consultation document and WCC OS mapping licence 100019520 

P
age 76

P
age 8 of 12



Appendix C

S278 scheme:
B4632 Campden Road, 
Quinton

Extracts from PTP drawing 21216TA/AD/02 and WCC OS mapping licence 100019520 

P
age 77

P
age 9 of 12



Appendix D

S278 scheme:
C33 Bubbenhall Road, 
BagintonExtracts from PPL drawings GSC-PPL0HAD-OF-DR-CE-101 and 106 and WCC OS mapping licence 100019520 

P
age 78

P
age 10 of 12



Appendix E

S278 scheme:
D6216 Upper Henley 
Street, Stratford-
upon-AvonExtracts from DWN drawing UHS-DD-02 and WCC OS mapping licence 100019520 

P
age 79

P
age 11 of 12



Appendix F

S278 scheme:
M6 J1 / A426 Leicester Road, RugbyExtracts from IBH0597/1001 and WCC OS mapping licence 100019520 

P
age 80

P
age 12 of 12



Page 81

Page 1 of 2 Agenda Item 3a



Page 82

Page 2 of 2


	Agenda
	1 Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement – Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 - Leader of the Council
	Slavery PH L 19.11.15
	Slavery (App) PH L 19.11.15

	1a Decision Notice -  Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement – Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 - Leader of the Council
	2 The Warwickshire County Council (District Of Stratford On Avon) (Civil Enforcement Area) (Waiting Restrictions, On Street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation No. 5) Order 2019 - Transport and Planning
	Stratford on Avon Parking PH TP 19.11.15
	Proposed Decision to be taken by the Portfolio for Transport and Planning on or after 15 November 2019
	The Warwickshire County Council (District Of Stratford On Avon) (Civil Enforcement Area) (Waiting Restrictions, On Street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation No. 5) Order 2019
	Recommendation
	1. Introduction
	2. Market Way, Henley-in-Arden – No Waiting at any Time
	3. Prince Harry Road, Henley-in-Arden, No Waiting at any Time
	4. Main Street, Tiddington, No Waiting at any Time
	5. New Street, Tiddington, No Waiting at any Time
	6. Sandfield Road, Stratford-upon-Avon – No Waiting at any Time
	7. Sheep Street, Shipston-on-Stour – No Waiting at any Time
	8. High Street, Alcester – Disabled Badge Holders Only
	9. Financial Implications
	10. Timescales associated with the decision and next steps
	11.1. All work will be carried out within the existing 2019/20 budget allocations.
	11. Background Papers

	Stratford on Avon Parking (App A)  PH TP 19.11.15
	Stratford on Avon Parking (App B)  PH TP 19.11.15
	Sheets and Views
	TR_10876-01
	TR_10876-02
	TR_10876-03
	TR_10876-04
	TR_10876-05
	TR_10876-06
	TR_10876-07
	TR_10876-08
	TR_10876-09
	TR_10876-10
	TR_10876-11
	TR_10876-12
	TR_10876-13
	TR_10876-14
	TR_10876-15


	Stratford on Avon Parking (App C)  PH TP 19.11.15

	2a Decision Notice - The Warwickshire County Council (District of Stratford on Avon)(Civil Enforcement Area)(Waiting Restrictions, On Street Parking Places and Residents' Parking)(Consolidation)(Variation No 5) Order 2019 - Transport and Planning
	3 Various Developer-funded Scheme Approvals - Additions to the Capital Programme - Deputy Leader (Finance and Property)
	Cap Prog PH  DL 19.11.15
	Cap Prog PH  (Apps) DL 19.11.15

	3a Decision Notice - Various Developer-funded Scheme Approvals - Additions to the Capital Programme - Deputy Leader (Finance and Property)



